
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2018 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes From the September 18, 2018 Regular City 
Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 18290-18319.  Check number 
18289 to WHPS Provided Separately. 

c. Approval of Election Judges for the November General Election. 
d. First and Second Quarter Building Permit Information – For Information. 

 
5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  

 
6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 

 
7. David Zoldahn (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 

property located at 440 Kuntz Drive in Independence, MN (PID No.s: 33-118-24-24-0001 
and 33-118-24-21-0002): 
 

a. RESOLUTION 18-1002-01 considering approval of a minor subdivision to permit a 
lot line rearrangement to adjust the east/west line between the two subject parcels. 

 
8. Doug and Geralyn McDonald (Applicants/Owners) request that the City consider the 

following action for the property located at 4976 South Lakeshore Drive in Independence, 
MN (PID No. 24-118-24-11-0013): 
 



 

a. RESOLUTION 18-1002-02 considering approval of a variance to allow the 
construction of a detached accessory building that does not meet the side yard setback 
from the west property line. 

 
9. Open/Misc. 
 
10. Adjourn. 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., September 18, 2018 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 –6:30 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Grotting and McCoy  
ABSENT: Councilor Betts and City Attorney Vose 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, City Administrative Assistant Horner 
VISITORS: Geralyn McDonald, David Zoldahn, Samantha Kleinfield, Lieutenant Shane Magnuson, Steve 

McDonald 
 
4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 
 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes From the September 4, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 18259-18289.  
c. Approval of Final Security Release for Serenity Hills Subdivision. 
d. Approval of Agriculture Preserve Status Renewal for the Property Identified by PID 31-118-24-

34-0001 and owned by the Jeanne M. Ahrenholz Living Trust. 
 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda items. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Grotting and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC.  
 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 Highway 12 Safety Coalition 
 Klaers Century Farm Celebration 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 LMCC and Media Com Canvassing meeting 
 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., September 18, 2018 
 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 Craig Maas funeral 
 
Betts attended the following meetings: 
 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 Highway 12 Safety Coalition meeting 
 Regional Council of Mayors meeting 
 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce meeting 
 Northwest League of Cities meeting 
 Klaers Century Farm Celebration 
 Craig Maas funeral 

 
Horner attended the following meetings: 
 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 
 
6. Annual Presentation of Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Watch Commander, Lieutenant Shane Magnuson and Samantha Kleinfield presented on behalf of Sheriff 
Stanek. Magnuson outlined responsibilities of the office and noted the population of Hennepin County is 
currently 1.3 million people. He stated there is an unorganized territory by the Fort Snelling area. Magnuson 
said there are four task forces that operate under the leadership of the Sheriff’s office. Magnuson thanked the 
Council for supporting recent legislation and the resolution allowing law enforcement to carry Narcan. 
McCoy asked if the use of Narcan was being tracked and Magnuson said they are starting to track incidents.  
 
7. Discussion of the 2019 Draft Budget and Preliminary Tax Levy. 

 
a. Draft 2019 Budget Memorandum 
b. Draft 2019 Tax Levy 
c. Draft 2019 Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission Levy 

 
Lindrud noted the revised budget came in a little lower. Johnson asked about the Maple Plain decrease in the 
fire budget. Kaltsas noted it was a proposed fire budget not an adopted one yet. He said Larry Ende may be 
retiring in the next year and the funding for Public Works capital equipment is on track. Kaltsas said they will 
need new radios in Public Works. He said overall the proposed budget increase would be less than two 
percent. Kaltsas said the tax rate would be kept flat at 40%. 
 
8. Consider Approval of the 2018 Preliminary Budget and Tax Levy: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 18-0918-01 – Establishing the General and Debt Service preliminary tax 
levy. 

 
b. RESOLUTION NO. 18-0918-02 – Establishing the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management 

Commission preliminary tax levy. 
 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., September 18, 2018 
 

Kaltsas outlined the 2018 Preliminary Budget and Tax Levy. He noted it could go lower but not higher. 
Kaltsas said there are established funds that would have to be used to pay for equipment for Public Works. He 
described the cash flow analysis of the budget.  
 
McDonald noted the budget impact for homeowners was 3.36% which keeps at 40%. He noted overall 
revenue was 2.7 million and the key changes were in the general fund. McDonald stated there would be 
$20,430 funded in capital outlay costs.  
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting for preliminary approval of RESOLUTION NO. 18-0918-01 – 
Establishing the General and Debt Service preliminary tax levy. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy and 
Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy for preliminary approval of RESOLUTION NO. 18-0918-02 – 
Establishing the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission preliminary tax levy. Ayes: 
Johnson, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 
 
9. Open/Misc. 
 
10. Adjourn. 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:09 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Grotting and 
Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
        Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 
 __________________________ 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Accounts Payable Clarification 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: October 2, 2018 

 
Discussion: 
 
As you will notice, check no. 18289 for WHPS is missing from the Check Detail. It was handed to 

each Councilmember separately at the last City Council Meeting. It was missed during the 

regular check run.  There were two Nelson business related checks in this AP run.  The check for  

Nelson Auto Center for $375 had the wrong address and will need to be reissued next week. 

 
 

  
 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Approval of Election Judges for the 2018 General Election 

 

To: City Council  

From: Beth Horner 

Meeting Date: October 2, 2018 

 
The City Council is required to appoint election judges for the upcoming 2018 General Election. 
Staff has prepared a list of judges for consideration by the City Council. The following election 
judges can be considered for appointment by the City Council: 

 Charles Hayes                                    
 Sharon Cook                                        
 Marvin Johnson 
 Marilyn Hamilton 
 Jerry Wise 
 Judy Crosby 
 Marlys Timm 
 Jeanne Gardner 
 Carol Neyens 
 Kay Gabriel 
 Darcy Ciatti 
 Paula Savage 
 Lori McNamara 
 Carol Tubesing 
 Kim Niedzielski 
 Martha McCabe 
 Lynette Lang 
 Julie Grist (If needed) 
 Joan Kittok (If needed) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that the City Council approve the appointment of the                           
 aforementioned election judges. 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Building Permit Report - First and Second Quarters 2018 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas 

Meeting Date: October 2, 2018 

 
 
Discussion: 
The building permit report provides general information relating to the number, type and valuation of 
building permits pulled in the City through July of 2018.  This report will be provided quarterly to the City 
Council for information.  Year to date comparisons will be included in from subsequent years moving 
forward.  The City has issued 153 building permits through July of 2018. 

 











498 Kuntz Drive Minor Subdivision – City Council  10.02.2018  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Allow a Lot Line Rearrangement  
on the Property located at 498 Kuntz Drive 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: October 2, 2018 

Applicant: David Zoldahn 

Owner: David Zoldahn 

Location: 498 Kuntz Drive 

 

Request: 
David Zoldahn (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the property 
located at 498 Kuntz Drive in Independence, MN (PID No.s: 33-118-24-24-0001 and 33-118-24-21-0002): 

 
a. A minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement to adjust the east/west line between 

the two subject parcels. 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The property is located south of CSAH 6 at the southeast corner of CSAH 6 and Kuntz Drive.  There is an 
existing home and several detached accessory structures located on the southern property.  The northern 
property does not have any existing structures.  The majority of the property is currently tillable land with 
some wetlands located on the far east side of the property.  The property has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 498 Kuntz Drive (South Property)  
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage:  Before – 22.64 acres 
   After – 10.00 acres 
 

Property Information: Unaddressed PID No.33-118-24-21-0002 (North Property) 
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage:  Before – 2.55 acres 
   After – 15.19 acres 
 
  



498 Kuntz Drive Minor Subdivision – City Council  10.02.2018  
 Page 2 

 

498 Kuntz Road 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking a minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement which would allow the north 
property to be expanded and the south property to be reduced.  Both properties are considered buildable 
lots of record.  Currently, the south property is approximately 22.5 acres and the north property is 2.5 acres.  
The applicant would like to essentially balance the properties so that the north property has more 
“buildable” area.  The south property has the existing home and detached accessory buildings and would 
be 10 acres in the after condition.  The 10-acre lot size will allow no square footage restrictions for 
detached accessory structures.   

 
Staff has reviewed the request and offers the following information for consideration by the Planning 
Commission: 
 

1. The applicant meets applicable criteria relating to the existing accessory structures located on 
the south parcel.  In the after condition, all structures will meet requisite setbacks. 

 
2. In the after condition, the properties will have the following frontage on a public right of way 

and lot width to frontage ratios: 
 

~AREA TO BE COMBINED  
WITH PROPERTY TO NORTH.



498 Kuntz Drive Minor Subdivision – City Council  10.02.2018  
 Page 3 

 

North Property: 
Required Frontage:    300 LF  
Required Lot Frontage to Depth Ratio:  1:4 

 
Proposed Frontage:     501 LF (Kuntz Drive) 

1215 LF (CSAH 6) 
Proposed Lot Frontage to Depth Ratio: 1:2.5 
 
South Property: 
Required:     300 LF  
Required Lot Frontage to Depth Ratio:  1:4 

 
Proposed:      322 LF (Kuntz Drive) 
Proposed Lot Frontage to Depth Ratio: 1:4 
 

3. The applicant has provided the City with the requisite percolation tests confirming that there is 
a primary and secondary on-site septic site for each property.   
 

4. Access to the north property could be from either CSAH 6 or Kuntz Drive.  Access to CSAH 6 
would be subject to Hennepin County approval.  Hennepin County has noted that access onto 
CSAH will not be permitted at this time. 

 
5. There is adequate space on the north property to construct a residence and associated 

accessory buildings. 
 

6. Both properties are lots of record and no park dedication fees are required for either existing 
lot. 

 
7. The City will require the requisite drainage and utility easements for both properties. 

 
 

Neighbor Comments: 

The City has not received any written comments pertaining to the request for a lot line rearrangement.   

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of staff and the applicant.  Commissioners 
found that the request for the lot line rearrangement met all applicable criteria and was straight forward.  
Commissioners asked about access onto CSAH 6 and it was noted that Hennepin County had reviewed the 
proposed minor subdivision and will not allow access.  

 

 



498 Kuntz Drive Minor Subdivision – City Council  10.02.2018  
 Page 4 

 

Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval to the City Council of the requested minor subdivision to 
allow a lot line rearrangement with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement request meets all applicable 
conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, Sections 500 and 510, Planning and Land Use 
Regulations and Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested minor 
subdivision. 

 
3. Access to CSAH 6 will require the review and approval of Hennepin County. 

 
4. The Applicant shall provide the City with the legal descriptions, execute and record the requisite 

perimeter drainage and utility easements with the county within six (6) months of approval.  
 

5. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within six (6) 
months of approval. 
 

 

Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Proposed Subdivision Exhibit (Survey) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 18-1002-01 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW  
A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT FOR THE PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 498 KUNTZ DRIVE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance and other official 
controls to assist in implementing the Comprehensive Plan; and  

WHEREAS, David Zoldahn (Applicant/Owner) has submitted a request for a minor 
subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement for the properties located at 498 Kuntz Drive in 
Independence, MN (PID No.s: 33-118-24-24-0001 and 33-118-24-21-0002); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Properties are legally described and further depicted on attached Exhibit 
A; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties are both zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence subdivision and zoning ordinance for Agriculture 
Property; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 18, 2018 to 
review the application for a minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
David Zoldahn for a minor subdivision to allow lot line rearrangement per the City’s subdivision 
and zoning regulations with the following conditions: 



 

 
1. The proposed minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement request meets all 

applicable conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, Sections 500 and 510, 
Planning and Land Use Regulations and Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 
requested minor subdivision. 

 
3. Access to CSAH 6 will require the review and approval of Hennepin County. 

 
4. The Applicant shall provide the City with the legal descriptions, execute and record 

the requisite perimeter drainage and utility easements with the county within six (6) 
months of approval.  

 
5. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the 

county within six (6) months of approval. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
2nd day of October 2018, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
         
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPOSED PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS: 

Parcel   A: 

That part   of the North   22.00 acres of the Southeast Quarter  of the Northwest Quarter of  
Section   33, Township  118, Range  24,  Hennepin  County.  Minnesota, that   lies North of 
the South   332.54 feet thereof. 

 
AND 

 
That part   of the Northeast  Quarter   of  the  Northwest Quarter   of  Section   33,   
Township  118, Range  24,  Hennepin  County.   Minnesota,  described  as  follows: 

 
Commencing at  the  Southwest   corner   of  the Northwest  Quarter   of  the  Northeast  
Quarter   of  said Section   33,  thence  East  along  the  South   line  of  said Northwest  
Quarter   of  the  Northeast  Quarter,   o distance of  367.07 feet;   thence  Northwesterly 
deflecting left   115 degrees  55  minutes, a  distance of 
368.22 feet   to  the  centerline of  County  Road  No.  6; 
thence  Southwesterly deflecting  left   78  degrees  23 
minutes 53  seconds,   a  distance of  346.81  feet  along said  centerline  to  actual 
point   of  beginning;  thence  Southeasterly deflecting left   101  degrees  40  minutes, a  
distance of  272.48 feet   to  a  point   in  the  South line  of  the  Northeast  Quarter   of  
the  Northwest Quarter,   a  distance of  10.02  feet   West  from   the Southeast  corner   
thereof;  thence   West along   the 
South   line  of  said  Northeast  Quarter   of  the  Northwest 
Quarter   to  the  Southwest   corner   of  said  Northeast 
Quarter   of  the  Northwest  Quarter;    thence  North   along the   West line  of  the  
Northeast  Quarter   of  the Northwest  Quarter   to  the  centerline of  County  Road No.  6;   
thence  Easterly along  said  centerline  to  the point   of  beginning. 

 
Parcel B: 

 
The South   332.54 feet of the North   22.00 acres of the Southeast Quarter  of the  
Northwest  Quarter   of Section   33,   Township  118, Range  24,  Hennepin  County. 
Minnesota. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 











1

2

WATERTOWN   ROAD

K
U
N
T
Z
 
 
 
D
R

Revised:

Project No.

Checked By:
Scale:Drawn By:Date:

Requested By:

denotes 1/2 inch by 14 inch iron pipe

set and marked by License #40062

denotes iron monument found

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.

9 West Division Street

Buffalo, MN 55313

(763)682-4727

Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

N

Concept Plan

9-6-18

David Zoldahn

M.J.H. 1"=100' P.E.O.

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or

report was prepared by me or under my

direct supervision and that I am a duly

Licensed Land Surveyor under the laws

of the State of Minnesota.

_______________________________

Paul E. Otto

License #40062  Date:_____________

Feet

0 100 200

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.E. 1/4 OF THE N.W. 1/4 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID  NO  33-118-24 21 0002 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID  NO  33-118-24 21 0001 

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
Concept Plan on part of , and the S.E. 1/4 of the N.W. 1/4 of Section 33, Township 118, Range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-7-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total Area = 25.2± ACRESLOT 1 PID NO 33-118-24 21 0002 PID 2 PID NO 33-118-24 24 0001

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-0425



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Variance from the Front and Corner Yard Setbacks for the  
Property Located at 4976 Lake Shore Drive South 

 

To: City Council 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: October 2, 2018 

Applicant: Doug and Geralyn McDonald 

Owner: Doug and Geralyn McDonald 

Location: 4976 South Lake Shore Drive 

 
 
Request: 
Doug and Geralyn McDonald (Applicants/Owners) request that the City consider the following action for the 
property located at 4976 South Lake Shore Drive in Independence, MN (PID No. 24-118-24-11-0013): 

 
a. A variance to allow the construction of a detached accessory building that does not meet 

the side yard setback from the west property line. 
 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located at 4976 South Lake Shore Drive.  The property is located on Lake 
Independence off of South Lake Shore Drive.  There is an existing home and detached garage on the 
subject property.   
 

Property Information: 4976 South Lake Shore Drive 
 Zoning: Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 
 Acreage: 1.01 acres (43,995 square feet) 

Impervious Surface Maximum: 25% (10,999 square feet) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 2 

 

4976 South Lakeshore Drive (blue line) 

  
 

 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking approval to remove and replace an existing legal non-conforming detached 
accessory structure located on the subject property.  There is an existing detached accessory structure 
located on the property that does not currently meet the required side yard setback from the west property 
line.  The existing garage is located 1.5 feet from the west side property line.  The required setback for 
detached accessory structures is nine (9) feet.  The applicant would like to raise the height of the building 
foundation to allow proper drainage of the site to go around the building and towards the lake without 
inundating the structure.  In addition to raising the elevation of the existing structure, the applicant would 
like to change the roof line of the building so that they can access the building from a door on the south 
elevation.  The existing garage has an off-centered roof line that can be seen from the photographs 
attached to this report.  The applicant would like to construct a standard centered gabled roof on the new 
garage. 
 
Staff has had correspondence with the applicant to discuss the existing and proposed detached garages on 
the property.  The applicant did look at rebuilding the existing shed in its current location which would be 
permitted by the City.   Ultimately, the applicant determined that they would like the City to consider 
granting a variance to allow a new detached accessory garage to be constructed in the same location as 
the existing garage with three changes: 

LOCATION OF EXISTING/ 
PROPOSED DETACHED  
STRUCTURE 
 



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 3 

 

1. Raise the finished floor elevation of the new structure so that it sites 1.5 feet above the 
adjacent drainage swale. 

2. Change the roofline of the new structure from an offset gable roof to a center gable roof. 
3. Extend the structure 3 feet to the south while maintaining the 1.5-foot side yard setback. 

 
The proposed garage would have the following setbacks: 
 
Side Yard Setback:  

Required: 9 feet from the side yard property line 
Proposed: 1.5 feet from the side yard property line (variance of 7.5 feet) 
 

 

REQUIRED 9’‐ SETBACK 

EXISTING/PROPOSED  
GARAGE 



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 4 

 

There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance.  The City’s ordinance has established 
criteria for consideration in granting a variance.   
 
520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 
terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 
is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 
the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 
with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in  
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means:  

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code;  
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner;  

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 
not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the  
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend and the City Council may 
impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 
proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08)  
 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.  The applicants are 
seeking a variance that is generally consistent with similar variances granted for properties in this 
area.  
 

b. Many of the properties in this area have setbacks from the right of way or side property lines that 
do not meet the required setbacks. 

 
c. The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed garage expansion for a single-

family home is in keeping with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 
There are several additional items that could be considered by the City: 



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 5 

 

1. Many of the surrounding properties have been granted relief from the requisite setback 
requirements due to the small size of the properties, unique lot layouts resulting from the historic 
nature of the structures on the properties and the change in nature of the homes from seasonal to 
permanent. 

2. The neighboring property owner directly west that would have the most visibility of the garage has 
submitted a letter to the City stating that they support the requested variance.   In addition, this 
property owner recently constructed a new detached accessory structure on their property.  During 
the construction of the adjacent detached accessory building, the drainage along this property line 
was generally corrected. 

 
3. The proposed garage would be very similar to the existing garage on the property. 

 
4. The maximum impervious surface coverage for this property is .25% or 10,999 SF.  The existing 

coverage is as follows: 
 

House, walks, patio and deck: 4,953 SF 
Driveway:   3,803 SF 
Existing Garage:  575 SF 
   Total: 8,781 SF 
 

The total coverage with the existing and proposed garage (plus 60 SF for the 3 foot addition) would 
be within the allowable impervious coverage for this property. 

5. The applicant has submitted a proposed drainage plan which indicates how the drainage will be 
addressed on the subject property.  

 
6. The City allows up to 1,850 square feet of detached accessory structure for this property.  The 

existing and proposed garage is approximately 600 SF and well within the allowable structure size. 
 
Ultimately the City will need to find that the aforementioned criteria for granting a variance have been met 
by the applicant.     

 
Public Comments: 
The City received a letter from the neighboring property owner located at 4986 South Lake Shore Dr. 
offering support for the request.  
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of staff and the applicant.  Commissioners asked for 
additional information relating to the drainage on this property.  The property owner noted that they had worked 



4976 South Lake Shore Drive Variance Request – City Council 10.02.2018
  
 Page 6 

 

with Hennepin County Land and Water on a design for the drainage between the existing garage and new 
detached accessory structure on the adjacent property.  Commissioners noted that the applicant could rebuild 
the existing building and that the proposed building was similar in size and height to the building proposed.  
Commissioners asked if the new building conformed in all other aspects to the City’s ordinances.  Staff noted 
that it was fully in conformance outside of the side yard setbacks.  Commissioners found the variance to meet 
the criteria of the City and recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval to the City Council for the requested variance with the following 
findings and conditions should be considered.   
 

1. The proposed Variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 
Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested variance. 

 
3. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all applicable 

standards relating to the Rural Residential and Shoreland Overlay zoning districts.  No expansion of 
the garage will be permitted without an additional variance request.   

 
4. The Applicant shall record the City Council Resolution within six (6) months of the Council Approval. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Site Plan/Survey 
3. Drainage Plan from Hennepin County  
4. Letter from Adjacent Property Owner 
5. Pictures 
 
 
 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-1002-02 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE TO ALLOW A REDUCTION 
IN THE PERMITTED SIDE YARD SETBACK FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4976 

LAKE SHORE DRIVE SOUTH 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Doug and Geralyn McDonald (the “Applicant/Owner”) submitted a request 
for a variance to allow a reduced side yard setback which would permit a detached accessory 
structure on the property located at 4976 South Lake Shore Drive (PID No. 24-118-24-11-0013) 
(the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described as shown and depicted on Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 

WHEREAS the requested Variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications 
of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 18, 2018 to 
review the application for a Variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by 
law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

Doug and Geralyn McDonald and grants a Variance for the property in accordance with the 
City’s zoning regulations with the following findings and conditions: 

1. The proposed Variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 
in Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant 

and specially that: 
 

a. The requested variance is consistent with the historic use of the property and fits 
into the character of the surrounding property. 
 

b. The neighboring properties have similarly located accessory structures that 
mitigate the impacts of the proposed shed. 

 
c. The previous shed could have been reconstructed in the current location. 

 
3. The requested variances will allow the proposed detached accessory structure in 

accordance with the approved plans only (plans will become an exhibit of the 
resolution).  The variance granted shall be as follows: 
 
a. Side Yard: 1.5 feet (7.5 variance) 

4. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 
requested variance. 

 
5. Any future improvements made to this property will need to be in compliance with all 

applicable standards relating to the Rural Residential and Shoreland Overlay zoning 
districts.  No expansion of the detached accessory structure or impervious surface 
area will be permitted without additional review and approval from the City.   

 
6. The Applicant shall record the City Council Resolution within six (6) months of the 

Council approval. 
 

 
This resolution was adopted by the city council of the City of Independence on this 2nd day of 
October 2018, by a vote of __ ayes and ___ nays.   

       

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 

 
 
 

 









McDonald Residence Erosion Repairs

Legend
Type

 Storm Sewer (by Others)
Berm to be removed
2' Contours
County Parcels

µ

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet

Garage Drainage
Prepared by Hennepin County Land and Water

Date: 8/31/2018

- 15" HDPE Pipe Installed by Others
- Remove Berm to direct drainage behind garage
-Overflow Ditch behind Garage at least 1.5 feet below the garage floor elevation
-Maximum side slopes of 3H:1V






	18-0425 CONCEPT PLAN 9-7-18.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	CONCEPT





